

United States Attorneys
Bulletin



*Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.*

Volume 21

September 14, 1973

No. 19

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

TABLE OF CONTENTSPage

POINTS TO REMEMBER

Robbery of Personal Property
of the United States;
Application of 18 U.S.C.
2114 Confined to Postal-
Related Crimes, Hanahan v.
United States, 442 F.2d
649 (7th Cir. 1972)

747

Handling of Drug Evidence -
DEA Laboratories

748

ANTITRUST DIVISION

SHERMAN ACT

Indictment and Complaint
Charging Violation of
Sherman Act Section 1

United States v. United Parcel
Service of America, Inc.

749

United States v. United Parcel
Service of America, Inc.

749

CIVIL DIVISION

EMERGENCY EMPLOYMENT ACT OF 1971

Sixth Circuit Upholds
Secretary of Labor's
Discretion to Limit
City's Use of Emergency
Employment Act Funds

American Federation of State,
County and Municipal Employees,
AFL-CIO v. City of Cleveland
and Secretary of Labor
(C.A. 6)

751

MILITARY PAY

Ninth Circuit Sustains
Government's Construction
of Readjustment Pay Statute

Cass v. United States
(C.A. 9)

752

Adams, et al. v. Secretary of
the Navy (C.A. 9)

752

EMPLOYEE DISCHARGE

Tenth Circuit Holds That
Probationary Nurse
Employed by Veterans
Administration was not
Entitled by 38 U.S.C. 4110
to a Full Disciplinary
Hearing Prior to Discharge

Kenneth v. Schmoll

753

CRIMINAL DIVISION

FOREIGN AGENTS REGISTRATION ACT
OF 1938, AS AMENDED

754

NATURALIZATION - DENIAL OF
NATURALIZATION UNDER 8 U.S.C.
SECTIONS 1101 (f)(6) and
1427 (a)(3) FOR LACK OF
CANDOR UNDER OATH
Petition For Naturalization
Held Properly Denied on
Ground that "Petitioner
Failed To Establish That
He is a Person of Good
Moral Character" In Light
of False Testimony Before
Examiner Relative to
Homosexual Activity

In the Matter of the Petition
for Naturalization of Antal
Kovacs (C.A. 2)

758

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION
NEPA

No Significant Effect on the
Quality of the Human
Environment; Review of
Denial of Preliminary
Injunction

Maryland-National Capital Park
and Planning Commission v.
U.S. Postal Service

760

PUBLIC LANDS

Provisions of Colorado River
Storage Act Barring Creation
of Reservoirs in National
Parks on Monuments Deemed
Inapplicable to Rainbow
Bridge National Monument
Because of Subsequent
Appropriation Acts

	<u>Page</u>
	<u>Friends of the Earth, et al. v. Ellis L. Armstrong, et al (C.A. 10)</u> 760
ENVIRONMENT	
NEPA; EIS; Highways; Scope of Project; Appropriate Length of Highway Section	<u>Indian Lookout Alliance v. Volpe (C.A. 8)</u> 761
Clean Air Act; Requirements of Administrator's Approval of State Implementation Plan	<u>National Resources Defense Council v. Environmental Protection Agency (C.A. 8)</u> 672
Clean Air Act; APA; National Environmental Policy Act; EPA's Approval of State Air Pollution Control Plan Subject to the Rulemaking Provisions of the APA	<u>Buckeye Power, Inc. v. EPA, East Kentucky Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation v. EPA, and Big Rivers Rural Electric Cooperative Corporation v. EPA (C.A. 6)</u> 763
REFUSE ACT	
Discharge into a Tributary of a Navigable River	<u>United States v. American Cyanamid Company (C.A. 2)</u> 673
PUBLIC BUILDINGS	
Summary Judgment; Action For Collection of Rent	<u>United States v. Industrial Communications Systems, Inc. (C.A. 9)</u> 764

APPENDIX
FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

RULE 16: Discovery and
Inspection

In the Matter of David T.
Dellinger et al. 765

RULE 21(a): Transfer from
the District for Trial;
For Prejudice in the
District

United States v. Enrique Llaco
Orbiz 767

RULE 21(b): Transfer from
the District for Trial;
Transfer in Other
Cases

United States v. Enrique Llaco
Orbiz 769

RULE 22: Time for Motion
to Transfer

United States v. Enrique Llaco
Orbiz 771

RULE 42(a): Criminal
Contempt; Summary
Disposition

In the Matter of David T.
Dellinger et al. 773

POINTS TO REMEMBER

Robbery of Personal Property of
the United States; Application of
18 U.S.C. 2114 Confined to Postal-
Related Crimes, Hanahan v. United
States, 442 F.2d 649 (7th Cir. 1972)

Having been convicted by a jury of armed robbery of an Internal Revenue office in contravention of 18 U.S.C. 2114, petitioner Robert M. Hanahan was sentenced to imprisonment for a mandatory term of twenty-five years. When the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed his conviction, Hanahan, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 2255, sought relief by way of a motion grounded upon the fact that he should have been prosecuted under 18 U.S.C. 2112, a violation of which embodied a maximum sentence of fifteen years, as contrasted with the twenty-five year mandatory sentence imposed upon a section 2114 offender. Hanahan's section 2255 motion, however, was denied by both the district court and the Court of Appeals.

Thereafter, Hanahan filed a petition for writ of certiorari in which he contended that 18 U.S.C. 2114 was intended by Congress to be restricted in its scope to only postal-related robberies. While on its face section 2114 encompasses the crime for which petitioner was convicted, the legislative history of section 2114 manifests that it be strictly construed so as to encompass only robberies of property of the United States in the custody of its postal officials. The United States, having reviewed the legislative history of section 2114, concurred in Hanahan's analysis that section 2114 was to be made applicable only to postal-related crimes and concluded that he should more properly have been charged under 18 U.S.C. 2112.

Inasmuch as the substance of an offense under 18 U.S.C. 2112 parallels that of 18 U.S.C. 2114, which differs only in its postal nexus and mandatory sentencing provision, the Solicitor General moved that the petition for a writ of certiorari be granted and the judgment of the Court of Appeals should be vacated and the case remanded to the district court for resentencing.

In view of the foregoing, United States Attorneys should insure that 18 U.S.C. 2114 is employed only for postal-related violations and should so annotate the form indictment for that section in the "Guides for Drafting Indictments."

(Criminal Division)

Handling of Drug Evidence -
DEA Laboratories

The Federal Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) operates regional laboratories in New York, Washington, D.C., Miami, Chicago, Dallas, and San Francisco. These laboratories perform identifications of evidence for almost all Federally-prosecuted controlled substances cases; forensic chemists employed therein then render expert testimony during the resulting trials. The physical evidence acquired by DEA Special Agents is turned over to the laboratory for examination at the time of acquisition through purchase or seizure; it is stored there after analysis until needed for trial, at which time the Special Agent in charge of the case will withdraw it for presentation in court.

A problem has arisen regarding controlled substances which are being retained for extended periods of time in the United States District Courts or in United States Attorney's offices. In some instances, portions of the drug evidence were missing when returned to the laboratories for disposition after long periods. Generally, the Court or prosecutor's office does not have adequate facilities to store controlled substances securely for extended periods.

Since exhibits of controlled substances, when introduced into evidence, become the property of the Court it is necessary to insure that the exhibits are properly handled and safeguarded. Therefore, immediately following a verdict of guilty the prosecutor handling the case should request its court, on the record, to release the exhibits of controlled substances to the DEA Special Agent in charge of the case for safe-keeping in the appropriate DEA laboratory pending completion of all appeals.

Secure storage facilities exist at each of these laboratories; if the evidence is needed for any subsequent appellate proceeding, it can be readily retrieved from the laboratory. Under no circumstances should controlled substances be stored in the U.S. District Court or in an individual Assistant U. S. Attorney's office for any extended period of time following the end of the trial.

(Drug Enforcement Administration)

ANTITRUST DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Thomas E. Kauper

DISTRICT COURT

SHERMAN ACT

INDICTMENT AND COMPLAINT CHARGING VIOLATION OF SHERMAN
ACT SECTION 1

United States v. United Parcel Service of America, Inc.
(73 CR. 409; August 3, 1973; DJ 60-312-1)

United States v. United Parcel Service of America, Inc.
(73 Civ. 1773; August 3, 1973; DJ 60-312-3)

On August 3, 1973, an indictment and companion civil complaint were filed in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania charging United Parcel Service of America, Inc. (UPS) with allocating customers and territories, and fixing prices, in violation of Sherman Act §1. The indictment and complaint charge that UPS and its principal competitor in the Philadelphia-Camden Metropolitan Area, Hourly Messengers, Inc. (HM), entered into a conspiracy which lasted from 1958 through the end of 1969 to eliminate competition between them in the business of picking up and delivering small packages being sent between business establishments. That business is sometimes called "wholesale" package delivery as contrasted with the business of delivering retail goods to the homes of individual customers.

HM and its former owner, Alvin Rosenberg, were named as co-conspirators but were not indicted. In late 1969, HM was sold to Novo Corporation, a company not alleged to have been involved in the conspiracy.

It is charged that the terms of the conspiracy were that:

1. HM would limit its business to drug, dental and photo supply packages;
2. HM would not apply for any new authority, nor protest any new UPS application;
3. HM would refrain from soliciting business from any supporting shipper used by UPS in a proceeding before the Pennsylvania PUC;
4. HM would not charge less than 75 cents a package for special delivery packages;

5. HM would confine its business to an area within .25 miles of center-city Philadelphia, even though it had authority to serve a 50 mile radius;
6. UPS would refrain from soliciting business from any of HM's drug, dental or photo supply customers in the 25 mile area around Philadelphia;
7. UPS and HM would pay each other 5% penalties in the event either solicited the other's customers

The civil case would prohibit UPS from making any agreement with any carrier limiting the right of either UPS or that carrier to serve or solicit any customer or territory either had authority to serve. It would also ban UPS from entering into any agreement with any other carrier limiting the freedom of either UPS or that carrier to file future applications, amendments, or protests in regulatory proceedings.

The case is assigned to Judge John B. Hannum. No date for arraignment has yet been set.

Staff: Joel Davidow and William J. Holloran
(Antitrust Division)

CIVIL DIVISION

Acting Assistant Attorney General Irving Jaffe

COURTS OF APPEALEMERGENCY EMPLOYMENT ACT OF 1971SIXTH CIRCUIT UPHOLDS SECRETARY OF LABOR'S DISCRETION TO
LIMIT CITY'S USE OF EMERGENCY EMPLOYMENT ACT FUNDS

American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees,
AFL-CIO v. City of Cleveland and Secretary of Labor (C.A. 6,
Nos. 73-1106, 73-1107 and 73-1108, decided August 14, 1973;
D.J. 145-57-255)

The Emergency Employment Act of 1971 provided funds to local governments "to provide unemployed and underemployed persons with transitional employment in jobs providing needed public services during times of high unemployment," and mentioned specifically Vietnam veterans and various minority groups for special consideration. After the City of Cleveland used funds from two grants almost entirely to rehire recently laid-off municipal employees, the Secretary of Labor determined that such use of the funds was not consistent with the Act's purposes, and limited the use of a third grant to prevent the city from using more than 15% of the funds to rehire recently laid-off municipal employees. The municipal employees' union sued to enjoin the Secretary and the city from so limiting the grant.

The district court declared the 15% limitation invalid and enjoined the city from hiring with regard to the restriction. The Court of Appeals reversed, holding that the Secretary had acted reasonable within the wide discretion granted him under the Act to condition grants. The Court held that the Secretary had properly determined that, in particular, the restriction would help insure the hiring of returning Vietnam veterans -- a specific purpose of the Act. The Court held that depositions of the administrators, taken in adversary proceedings, as distinguished from affidavits, were not "post hoc rationalizations." Basing its review on the APA, the court held that the Secretary was not required to make formal findings, and that the record indicated a "rational basis" for his action, which was an "allowable judgment" for which the Court could not impose a substitute.

Staff: Walter H. Fleischer, Michael H. Stein and
Stanton R. Koppel (Civil Division)

MILITARY PAYNINTH CIRCUIT SUSTAINS GOVERNMENT'S CONSTRUCTION OF
READJUSTMENT PAY STATUTE

Cass v. United States, (C.A. 9, No. 72-2633; decided August 1, 1973; D.J. 151-44-199)

Adams, et al. v. Secretary of the Navy (C.A. 9, Nos. 72-3028 to 72-3030; decided August 1, 1973; D.J. 145-6-1190, 145-6-1181, 145-6-1184)

The readjustment pay statute, 10 U.S.C. 687(a), provides that a military reservist is eligible for readjustment pay if he completes "at least five years" of continuous service on active duty before his involuntary release. The statute, however, also contains a rounding provision specifying that "a part of a year that is six months or more is counted as a whole year." The Court of Claims held that because of the rounding provision, a serviceman becomes eligible for readjustment pay after completing four and one-half years' service. Schmid v. United States, 436 F2d 987, certiorari denied, 404 U.S. 951 (1971).

Relying upon Schmid, servicemen who had been ordered released after completing more than four and one-half, but less than five, years' service brought these actions for readjustment pay. Cass brought his action after his release, but in Adams, the servicemen sought to enjoin their impending release unless they were paid readjustment pay. The district court in Adams issued preliminary injunctions which caused the servicemen to be retained on active duty beyond the completion of five full years of duty. The district courts in both Cass and Adams awarded readjustment pay to the servicemen on the ground that only four and one-half years' service was necessary.

On the Government's appeals, the Ninth Circuit reversed and held, contrary to Schmid, that the rounding provision applies only for purposes of computing the amount of pay, not for determining eligibility. The court also held that the servicemen in Adams, who completed five years service by virtue of the preliminary injunction, could not "bootstrap" themselves into eligibility. The agencies involved estimated that lowering the eligibility period from five years to four and one-half years would increase the Government's potential liability of \$30,000,000.

Staff: Anthony J. Steinmeyer, Robert M. Feinson
(Civil Division)

EMPLOYEE DISCHARGE

TENTH CIRCUIT HOLDS THAT PROBATIONARY NURSE EMPLOYED BY VETERANS ADMINISTRATION WAS NOT ENTITLED BY 38 U.S.C. 4110 TO A FULL DISCIPLINARY HEARING PRIOR TO DISCHARGE.

Kenneth v. Schmoll (No. 72-1831), decided August 7, 1973; D.J. 35-49-5)

Plaintiff was a VA nurse within the 3 year probationary period provided by 38 U.S.C. 4106(b) for VA doctors, dentists and nurses. During that period, in accordance with §4106 a professional standards board reviewed plaintiff's record, found her "not fully qualified and satisfactory" and discharged her. Plaintiff filed suit contending that her discharge without a full hearing violated 38 U.S.C. 4110 and the due process clause. Following a brief hearing on an order to show cause, the district court ordered plaintiff reinstated with back pay on the ground that §4110 provides, without qualification, for a full disciplinary hearing for all doctors, dentists and nurses employed by the VA. In reversing, the Court of Appeals accepted our contention that § 4106 and 4110 must be read together, and when so construed, they do not require a full hearing for probationary employees. The case has been remanded for a hearing on the constitutional issue, but the Court of Appeals stated that the VA was not required to restore the plaintiff to her position pending a hearing on the merits.

Staff: Thomas G. Wilson
(Civil Division)

CRIMINAL DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Henry E. Petersen

FOREIGN AGENTS REGISTRATION ACT
OF 1938, AS AMENDED

The Registration Unit of the Criminal Division administers the Foreign Agents Registration Act of 1938, as amended, (22 U.S.C. 611) which requires registration with the Attorney General by certain persons who engage within the United States in defined categories of activity on behalf of foreign principals.

AUGUST 1973

During the first half of this month the following new registrations were filed with the Attorney General pursuant to the provisions of the Act:

Romanian Foreign Trade Promotion Office of San Francisco registered as agent of the Ministry of Foreign Trade of Romania, Bucharest. Registrant is engaged in the promotion of trade between the United States and Romania. Registrant reported the receipt of \$115,029.00 from the foreign principal for the period January - May 1973 of \$15,029 for the operation of the Office. Octavian Bucina filed a short-form registration statement as Chief of the San Francisco Office.

Romanian Foreign Trade Promotion and Cooperation Office, Chicago, Illinois registered as agent of the Ministry of Foreign Trade, Romania and the Romanian Embassy in USA. Registrant is engaged in the promotion of trade to Romania and reported receipt of \$21,338 for the period from June 1972 - May 1973 for the operation of the office. Teodor Munteanu filed a short-form registration as Chief of the Chicago office and Vasile Popescu filed a short-form registration statement as trade promotion officer.

Daniel J. Edelman, Inc. of Washington, D.C. registered as agent of the Government of Liberia, Monrovia. Registrant will be responsible for all media work and public relations in connection with the visit of William R. Tolbert, President of Liberia to the United States. For these services registrant will receive \$9,000 in three installments. John Martin Meek; J. Norris; Thomas M. Mommers; Katherine M. Christie; Jeanne Gumm; Myron N. Ranney; Adolph Zilverstein; Thomas L. Harris; and Janice Childress all filed short-form registration statements as public relations consultants on a special basis for the Liberian account.

Mexican National Tourist Council, Chicago registered as agent of its parent in Mexico City. Registrant's sole purpose in the United States is to promote tourism to Mexico. Registrant reports a monthly budget of \$2,176.43 for office maintenance. Enriqueta Sanchez B. filed a short-form statement as Director and reports a salary of \$1,000 per month.

Freeman, Teilmann & Associates Public Relations of San Francisco registered as agent of the Ministry of Cultural Affairs, Moscow, U.S.S.R. Registrant acted as public relations counsel to the foreign principal for services prior to, during and immediately following the Soviet Exhibition in San Francisco during December 1966. Registrant received a fee of \$2,000 for those services in 1967. Michael R. Teilmann filed a short form registration as Public Relations Executive reporting a fee of \$2,000 and Howard B. Freeman filed a short-form statement as Public Relations Consultant reporting a fee of \$2,000.

Activities of persons already registered under the Act:

German Federal Railroad of New York filed exhibits in connection with its representation of Deutsche Bundesbahn, Federal Republic of Germany. Registrant is a subdivision of its principal and engages in publicity and informational activities on behalf of the principal.

United States-Japan Trade Council filed exhibits in connection with its representation of the Japan Trade Promotion Office. Registrant performs economic research, legislative analysis and engages in public relations activities on behalf of the foreign principal. The principal's financial support to the registrant is not to exceed \$395,483.00 for the fiscal year - April 1973 - March 1974.

Lynch, Wilde & Company, Inc. of Washington, D. C. filed exhibits in connection with its representation of Centrais Eletricas Brasileiras, S.A. - Eletrobras, Rio de Janeiro. Registrant will provide professional technical and administrative assistance to the foreign principal including emergency purchasing and shipping, administrative liaison with lending agencies, development and supervision of education and training programs and provision of technical consultants. For these services registrant is to receive \$2,000 per month plus out of pocket expenses.

The Caribbean Travel Association of New York filed exhibits in connection with its parent Association in Curacao, Netherlands Antilles. Registrant's sole purpose in the United States is the promotion of tourism to the Caribbean area and its activities are supported by contributions from its various members.

Wyman, Bautzer, Rothman & Kuchel of Washington, D. C. filed exhibits in connection with their representation of Airbus Industrie, Paris, France. Registrant will advise the foreign principal on U. S. laws and policies and will assist in negotiations with representatives of the U. S. Government including the Executive and Legislative departments for which registrant will receive a fee of \$5,000 per month plus \$1,000 per month for expenses.

Short-form registration statements filed in support of registrations already on file:

On behalf of Miller & Chevalier of Washington, D. C. whose foreign principals are Royal Bank of Canada, the Bank of Montreal and the Toronto Dominion Bank: John S. Nolan as attorney engaged in lobbying in connection with tax bills. Mr. Nolan receives a percentage of the net earnings of the partnership for his services.

On behalf of the Japan Trade Center, San Francisco: Koji Yoshitsugu as Officer engaged in public relations in connection with the promotion of trade between the United States and Japan and reporting a salary of \$1,100 per month.

On behalf of Package Express and Travel Agency, Inc. of New York whose foreign principal is Vneshposyltorg, U.S.S.R. Alexander Kraft as agent engaged in the sending of gift parcels to recipients in the USSR and reporting a salary of \$2,000 per year plus a 50% commission.

On behalf of Association-Sterling Films of New York whose foreign principals are 45 foreign government tourist and information offices: William C. Schweizer reporting a salary of \$1,141.66 per month; Dorothy E. Saeugling reporting a salary of \$400 per month; Shirley D. Smith reporting a salary of \$7,500 per year; C. Edgar Bryant reporting a commission of 2%; Winston O. Siler reporting a commission of 1% of monthly billings; Robert Imlach reporting a salary of \$1,400 per month; William O. Fly reporting no compensation; Kenneth A. Ring reporting no compensation and William J. Troy reporting no compensation. All are engaged in the distribution of films on behalf of the registrants foreign principals.

On behalf of Whitman & Ransom of New York whose foreign principal is the Japan National Tourist Organization: Yasuhiko Kimura as officer reporting a salary of \$20,000 per year, Toro Ishino as Deputy Director reporting a salary of \$25,000 per year both are engaged in the promotion of tourism to Japan.

On behalf of the New Zealand Government Tourist Office of San Francisco: Langley F. Manning as officer engaged in

tourist promotion and publicity and reporting a salary of \$22,000 per year.

On behalf of the French Government Tourist Office of New York: Andre Moraillon as Assistant Director General reporting a salary of \$577.42 per month plus living allowance of \$749.25 per month and Michael Couturier as Assistant Manager reporting a salary of \$940 per month. Both are engaged in the promotion of tourism to France.

On behalf of the Israel Government Tourist Office of New York: Nathan T. Freedman as Public Relations Director reporting a salary of \$1,340 per month and Paul Lightman as Director reporting a salary of \$10,000 per year. Both are engaged in the promotion of tourism to Israel.

On behalf of Wyman, Bautzer, Rothman & Kuchel of Washington, D.C. whose foreign principals are Korean Footwear Exporters' Association and Embassy of the Republic of Korea: J. Ramond Bell as attorney engaging in political activities on behalf of the foreign principal on a special basis and reporting no compensation.

On behalf of the Bahama Islands Tourist Office of Miami: Randolph G. Clare, Jr. as sales representative reporting \$8,000 per year plus 12 cents per mile and Robert E. Brady as Senior Representative reporting a salary of \$12,000 per year. Both are engaged in the promotion of tourism to the Bahamas.

On behalf of Package Express & Travel Agency, Inc. whose foreign principal is Vneshposyltorg, USSR: Stefan Brendzey as agent engaged in sending gift parcels to recipients in the USSR and reporting a commission of \$8,000 per year.

On behalf of the Jamica Progressive League, New York whose foreign principal is the Peoples National Party, Jamica: Rupert Duncan as Director and Horace A. Cardoza as Officer. Both are engaged in political activities rendering their services on a part-time basis and reporting no compensation.

On behalf of the French National Railroads of New York: Michel Douel as Assistant to the General Manager and reporting a salary of \$2,000 per month. Registrant is engaged in the promotion of tourism to France.

COURT OF APPEALSNATURALIZATION - DENIAL OF NATURALIZATION
UNDER 8 U.S.C. Sections 1101(f)(6) and 1427(a)(3)
FOR LACK OF CANDOR UNDER OATH

PETITION FOR NATURALIZATION HELD PROPERLY DENIED ON GROUND THAT "PETITIONER FAILED TO ESTABLISH THAT HE IS A PERSON OF GOOD MORAL CHARACTER" IN LIGHT OF FALSE TESTIMONY BEFORE EXAMINER RELATIVE TO HOMOSEXUAL ACTIVITY

In the Matter of the Petition for Naturalization of Antal Kovacs, (C.A. 2, No. 72-1243, April 25, 1973; 476 F.2d 843; D.J. 38-51-4459)

At his naturalization hearing petitioner, a Hungarian national who was admitted to the United States for permanent residence in 1959, was questioned at length about certain arrests, occurring in 1959, 1960, and 1962, involving alleged homosexual activities. He denied participation in homosexual acts despite the introduction into evidence of a previously executed affidavit admitting such activity as well as a medical certificate resulting from petitioner's examination by a United States Public Health Service psychiatrist containing a diagnosis of "psychopathic personality - homosexual" and petitioner's Selective Service file, classifying him as a "moral reject" and unfit for military service. The hearing examiner recommended naturalization, relying upon Petition of Labady, 326 F. Supp. 924 (S.D.N.Y. 1971), which held that naturalization should not be denied simply because the applicant had engaged in private consensual homosexual acts. However, in reference to petitioner's testimony about prior homosexual proclivities, the examiner noted that "Petitioner's denials in the face of the evidence are incredible indeed, and the court could reasonably consider such testimony as less than truthful and deny the petition." In a written memorandum the district court did deny the petition on the ground that "petitioner's lack of candor in his testimony before the examiner is in itself incompatible with any reasonable standard of behavior."

The Immigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C. Section 1427 (a)(3), requires that an applicant be a person of "good moral character" at the time of his petition and in the immediately preceding five year period. It is further provided in 8 U.S.C. 1101(f)(6) that "one who has given false testimony for the purpose of obtaining any benefits under this chapter" does not possess such character. The burden of proving good moral character is on the petitioner with any doubts to be resolved against him.

Berenyi v. District Director, 385 U.S. 630,636-637, (1967). In affirming the district court decision, the appellate court emphasized that it was not denying naturalization on the basis of petitioner's sexual activity but rather for his lack of candor under oath.

Staff: Former United States Attorney Whitney North Seymour
Special Assistant United States Attorney Stanley
H. Wallenstein
Special Assistant United States Attorney Joseph P.
Marro
(S.D. New York)

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Wallace H. Johnson

COURTS OF APPEAL

NEPA

NO SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE QUALITY OF THE HUMAN ENVIRONMENT;
REVIEW OF DENIAL OF PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission v.
U.S. Postal Service (C.A. D.C. No. 72-2126, Aug. 23, 1973; D.J.
90-1-4-569)

The Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission brought this suit to enjoin further construction of the Postal Service's bulk mail facility in Prince George's County. The Corps, construction agent for the Postal Service, had prepared an environmental assessment and concluded that no impact statement need be prepared since the project would have no significant effect on the quality of the human environment.

The district court denied a preliminary injunction and the Court of Appeals refused to reverse. The near-complete state of the project went far to convince the court that an impact statement at this stage would be largely a futile gesture. The court, however, remanded the case for reconsideration of the possible need for an impact statement for certain environmental problems: storm water run-off, oil run-off from the parking area and the visual impact of the project on motorists driving past at high speed on the Capital Beltway. The court discussed the particular need for federal agencies to consider environmental aspects of a project which constitutes a non-conforming use according to the local zoning authority.

Staff: Thomas L. McKevitt and Henry J. Bourguignon
(Land and Natural Resources Division)

PUBLIC LANDS

PROVISIONS OF COLORADO RIVER STORAGE ACT BARRING CREATION OF
RESERVOIRS IN NATIONAL PARKS ON MONUMENTS DEEMED INAPPLICABLE TO
RAINBOW BRIDGE NATIONAL MONUMENT BECAUSE OF SUBSEQUENT APPROPRIATION
ACTS

Friends of the Earth, et al. v. Ellis L. Armstrong, et al.,
(C.A. 10, Nos. 73-1223, 73-1278 to 73-1283, Aug. 2, 1973;
D.J. 90-1-4-258)

Various environmental organizations brought suit to compel the Bureau of Reclamation to maintain the water level of Lake Powell below a certain elevation at which the waters of the lake enter Rainbow Bridge National Monument. The plaintiffs relied upon two provisions of the Colorado River Storage Act, 43 U.S.C. sec. 620 et. seq., which state that no reservoirs shall be constructed within any national park or monument and which specifically direct the Bureau of Reclamation to protect Rainbow Bridge.

Reversing the district court, the Court of Appeals held that Congress had repealed the relevant provisions of the Colorado River Storage Act by subsequent appropriation acts which prohibited expenditures of funds to protect the monument. The Court of Appeals noted that the legislative history of the appropriation acts clearly demonstrates that Congress intended to permit partial inundation of the monument. The court further stated that Congress did not intend to limit operation of Lake Powell to only one-half of its storage capacity and thus upset water management plans to the entire Colorado Basin. The opinion notes that Rainbow Bridge itself would not be inundated nor would it suffer any structural damage.

Staff: Raymond N. Zagone and Robert L. Klarquist
(Land and Natural Resources Division)

ENVIRONMENT

NEPA; EIS; HIGHWAYS; SCOPE OF PROJECT; APPROPRIATE LENGTH OF HIGHWAY SECTION

Indian Lookout Alliance v. Volpe (C.A. 8, No. 72-1620, Aug. 22, 1973; D.J. 90-2-4-225)

This case concerned the length of the shortest possible highway segment which may be considered a separate project for purposes of an environmental impact statement. The Indian Lookout Alliance contended that the EIS should consider the entire proposed state expressway system or, alternatively, the entire proposed length of the specific highway involved. The district court had determined that an EIS was required for a 14-mile road segment which was designated for the State as project F-518-4. The United States had prepared an EIS for only the northern seven-mile portion of the project with the justification that location and design approval for the southern seven-mile portion had been issued prior to the effective date of NEPA.

The Court of Appeals decided that an impact statement need not consider the entire proposed highway system or necessarily cover the entire highway involved. Essentially the court balanced the need for flexibility with the desirability for meaningful environmental study. The court held that "the minimum length of state highway projects that are supported in part by federal funds must be extended to embrace projects of a nature and length that are supportable by logical termini at each end."

With specific reference to the case at bar, the court held that the county line did not represent a logical terminus and that the EIS would have to consider a highway segment beginning at the intersection with Interstate 80 and extending to the intersection with a highway presently designated as "U.S. 218."

Staff: United States Attorney Allen Donielson
(S.D. Iowa)

ENVIRONMENT

CLEAN AIR ACT; REQUIREMENTS OF ADMINISTRATOR'S APPROVAL OF STATE IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

National Resources Defense Council v. Environmental Protection Agency (C.A. 8, No. 72-1380, July 27, 1973; D.J. 90-5-2-3-50)

NRDC petitioned the Court of Appeals to review the Administrator's approval of the Iowa air pollution control implementation plan, alleging several deficiencies in the plan's compliance with the Clean Air Act. The court upheld the Administrator's approval of the Iowa plan with respect to "intergovernmental cooperation," stating that the Act does not require establishment of binding enforcement agreements among neighboring states. The court also held that the states could apply their procedures for granting variances from their plans during the "preattainment" period when they were trying to bring themselves into initial compliance with national air quality standards, but that they could not use their variance procedures after the attainment date (in this case May 31, 1975); the federal postponement procedures of the Clean Air Act must govern in the "post-attainment" period when states would be required to maintain national standards.

Staff: Alfred T. Ghiorzi and John E. Varnum
(Land and Natural Resources Division)

ENVIRONMENT

CLEAN AIR ACT ; APA ; NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT ;
EPA's APPROVAL OF STATE AIR POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN SUBJECT TO
THE RULEMAKING PROVISIONS OF THE APA

Buckeye Power, Inc. v. EPA, East Kentucky Rural Electric
Cooperative Corporation v. EPA, and Big Rivers Rural Electric
Cooperative Corporation v. EPA (C.A. 6, Nos. 72-1628, 72-1629
and 72-1632, June 28, 1973; D.J. 90-5-2-3-47, 90-5-2-3-42,
90-5-2-3-43)

Several power companies in Ohio and Kentucky filed petitions, pursuant to Section 307 of the Clean Air Act, with the Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit, challenging the EPA Administrator's approval of the Ohio and Kentucky air pollution control implementation plans. The Clean Air Act provides that States must submit plans to the Administrator prescribing measures for attaining and maintaining the national ambient air quality standards previously promulgated by the Administrator. Such plans are to be adopted by the States only after reasonable notice and a hearing. The Act further provides that the Administrator has four months to approve or disapprove the States' plans.

After filing their petitions, petitioners moved that the matter be remanded to the Administrator on the following grounds: (1) the Administrator had failed to comply with the Administrative Procedure Act and Due Process Clause because he failed to hold hearings of any kind or provide the opportunity to comment upon the plans prior to his approval; and (2) the Administrator had failed to comply with the National Environmental Policy Act because he did not prepare an environmental impact statement prior to his approval.

The court granted the petitioners' motion to remand, ruling that: (1) the Administrator must comply with the rulemaking provisions of the APA prior to his approval of the implementation plans and, thus, his approval of the Ohio and Kentucky plans is vacated until he does so; and (2) the Administrator is not required to comply with the requirements of NEPA prior to his approval of the plans.

Staff: John E. Varnum
(Land and Natural Resources Division)

REFUSE ACT

DISCHARGE INTO A TRIBUTARY OF A NAVIGABLE RIVER

United States v. American Cyanamid Company (C.A. 2,
73-1458, June 27, 1973; D.J. 62-51-438)

American Cyanamid Company was convicted of violating the Refuse Act, 33 U.S.C. sec. 407, by discharging various chemical wastes into Dickey Brook, a tributary of the Hudson River. The United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit upheld the district court's determination that, while the Government had not proved beyond a reasonable doubt that Brook was a navigable water of the United States or that refuse had in fact floated into the Hudson River, the words of the statute that "the same shall float or be washed into such navigable water" requires only a likelihood that the refuse discharged into a tributary would find its way to a navigable water and affirmed the court's holding that "the discharge was extensive enough so it would be likely to be washed into the navigable water."

Staff: Assistant United States Attorney Anne S. Eristoff
(S.D. N.Y.)

PUBLIC BUILDINGS

SUMMARY JUDGMENT; ACTION FOR COLLECTION OF RENT

United States v. Industrial Communications Systems, Inc.
(C.A. 9, No. 71-2467, Aug. 22, 1973; D.J. 90-1-1-2183)

The United States brought suit to collect rent from a corporation for use and occupation of a building in a national forest used to house electronic communications equipment under a special use permit giving the Forest Service the right to charge a reasonable rental. The permittee resisted on the ground that the rental had been determined in an arbitrary and capricious fashion, and also that the rental differed from that charged to its competitors also leasing space in the national forest.

Based on detailed affidavits with comprehensive data attached, the United States moved for summary judgment. The permittee responded with a single affidavit, conclusory in its nature, and which the district court found to be wholly insufficient to establish the existence of a justiciable controversy requiring trial, so it granted summary judgment in favor of the United States. On appeal the judgment was affirmed.

Staff: Eva R. Datz (Land and Natural Resources Division);
Assistant United States Attorney Bryan Freeman
(C.D. Cal.)